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disposal of testing water, and eleven-month inspection and corrections. Price will 

be payment in full for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and 

incidentals, and doing all work necessary to complete the work as specified. 

 

G. Float Switches 

 

The contractor is responsible for providing and installing new float switches for the new 

200,000-gallon tank.  The float switches shall have a minimum of 4-set points and have the 

ability to communicate tank water levels to the Arthur Road pump station.  Floats will 

communicate using existing overhead wiring currently connecting the 30,000-gallon 

redwood tank floats to the Arthur Road pump station.  Contractor shall provide submittal 

for product data and certification of all materials used in the float assembly, properly 

executed by the manufacturer, to the Engineer and Owner for approval.  

 

E. Specification Section 01 50 05.00 Temporary Connection, Section 1.2A is revised as follows: 

 

A. Temporary tank connection and District coordination: 

1. Basis of Measurement: Lump Sum. 

2. Basis of Payment: Includes temporary piping, valves, utility coordination for the 

relocation and connection of telecommunication to the Arthur Road pump 

station, seismic anchoring design & installation for temporary tank, float switch 

relocation, temporary tank overflow and outlet, excavation, backfill, connections, 

disconnections, coordination with the District, and submittal development, which 

price will be payment in full for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and 

incidentals, and doing all work necessary to complete the work as specified. 

 

F. Requirements for a 5-day soaking period and VOC testing under Specification Section 22 12 00.00, 

Paragraph 3.5B  is no long required for the 200,000-gallon welded steel tank.  

 

G. The following questions were received from prospective bidders at the mandatory pre-bid 

conference held at the project site on February 9, 2015 as well as additional questions received via 

email since the pre-bid meeting. 

 

1. Q: Is there an exception to the $10,000,000 liability insurance??  Yes, the requirement for Excess 

Umbrella Liability insurance in Special Condition Paragraph SC 6.04 K.4 is hereby reduced to 

$5,000,000 (five-million dollars)Per Occurrence.  

 

2. Q: Is the telemetry for the new tank going to be upgraded, or reinstall the existing telemetry?   The 

contractor is responsible for moving the existing telephone line to temporary tank from the existing 

redwood tank, removing the existing floats from the existing redwood tank and re-installing them in 

the temporary tank, and coordinating with the District for temporary tank start-up.  Telemetry for 

the new 200,000-gallon welded steel tank will be upgraded with new float switches; contractor is 

responsible for purchasing the new float switch and reinstalling the existing telephone line to new 

200,000-gallon tank.    

 

3. Q: Are any other permits required? Please refer Specification Section 22 12 00.00, subsection 3.6 

Disinfection, Paragraph B1.  

 

4. Q: Can finish grade be higher or is the plan elevation exact?  Finish grade shall be as shown in the 

plans.  
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5. Q: Are they able to expand finish grade rather than haul off excess spoils if needed? No, finish 

grade shall be as shown in the plans.  

 

6. Q: Will LACO be setting grade stake and determining exact location of tank and piping?  Is 

contractor or GSD responsible for LACO expenses to perform these tasks?  LACO will provide one 

set of construction stakes depicting the location of the tank center and location of piping as 

shown in the plans,  paid for by the owner.  Please refer to Specification Section 01 51 00 

Temporary Facilities and Controls, Paragraph 2.03 for more information. 

 

7. Q: How many compaction tests and concrete samples are required?  Who pays for these? Please 

refer to Specification Section 03 30 00 Cast-in-Place Concrete, Paragraph 3.6, and Specification 

Section 31 23 17 Trenching, Paragraph 3.6..   

 

8.  Q: Any Additional information on Altitude Valve? The altitude valve shall be as specified.   

 

9. Q: Does disinfection of tanks have to be performed prior to coating the tank?  Once the tank has 

been coated in accordance with the Project Specifications and AWWA D102-11, the tank shall be 

disinfected in accordance with the Project Specifications and AWWA C652-11. 

 

10.  Q: Is leak testing going to be performed prior to tank coating?  In accordance with AWWA D100-

11, Section 11.10 testing of flat bottoms and shell-to-bottom joint will be tested prior to tank 

coating; Shell, bottom, and roof testing will occur after the tank has been coated.  Refer to AWWA 

D100-11, Section 11.10 for additional information.    

 

11. Q: When will trees and shrubs be identified?  Trees shall be purchased in 5-gallon pot size, twelve 

(12) of each of the following species shall be installed; Madrone, Douglas Fir, and Tan Oak.   

 

12. Q: Can thrust blocks be used in place of thrust restraints?  Thrust blocks can be used in place of 

thrust restraints for below grade applications.  Thrust blocks shall be in accordance with Details on 

Sheet C5.1. 

 

13. Q: Please confirm that purchase of documents is not required for bidding?  Documents do not 

need to be purchased in order to be eligible for bidding.  

 

14. Q: Is the contractor required to provide a biologists to perform the pre-construction survey for bird 

nests and an archeologist for cultural monitoring as described in the MMRP?  No, the contractor is 

not required to retain biologists of archeologists for the project.  

 

15. Q: Please clarify the applicability of Line Item #8 Unsuitable Material which is described in Section 

31 22 13 Rough Grading?  If the engineer determines areas of subgrade contain unsuitable 

material, the material shall be removed and replaced in accordance with Section 31 22 13 Rough 

Grading.  

 

16. Q: What is the cost of the encroachment permit?  The encroachment permit is the responsibility of 

the Owner.  The contractor shall coordinate with the Humboldt County Roads Department 

regarding traffic control measures.  
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17. Q: How will the quantity of concrete for the ring foundation be estimated for bidding purposes? 

Contact your tank manufacture for information on the tank foundation.  

 

18. Q: Please provide the Geotechnical Memorandum. All bidding documents are available for 

download on the Owner’s website, http://www.garbervillesd.org/ 

 

19. Q: Does the valve vault have to be traffic rated.  The valve vault shall be H-20 Traffic Rated with a 

steel hatch.  The valve vault and hatch referenced in the plans is an Air Vac Meter Vault 

manufactured by Jensen Precast #LVVWD 3048, with a Steel Hatch #CAS-3048 

 

20. Q: What are the dimension of the security fence and gate?  The new security fence shall be 6-foot 

tall chain link fencing in accordance with Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications.  The Gate 

shall be a 12-foot wide 6-foot tall chain link gate in accordance with Caltrans Standard Plans and 

Specifications.   Caltrans Standard Plans A85 and A85A are included in Appendix 2.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All other Terms and Conditions outlined in the Specifications, Special Provisions, Notice to Contractors, 

Proposal and Contract remain the same. 

 

Acknowledgement: Bidders for the Alderpoint Road Tank Replacement Project are required to submit a 

copy of this Addendum duly signed and dated, acknowledging receipt with EXHIBIT B: BID FORM, and 

table in the form in Article 3 of the Bid Form. 

 

 

 

Contractor or Contractor’s Representative (Print then Sign) 

 

 

Title 

 

 

 

Date 

 

 

 

P:\7700\7714 Garberville Sanitary District\7714.02 Alderpoint Road Tank Engineering Services\10 Civil\Bid Phase\Addendum 01\7714.02 

Bidding Addendum 01.docx

http://www.garbervillesd.org/
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BID FORM 

Alderpoint road Tank Replacement Project 

Ralph Emerson, General Manager GSD 

(209) 743-0125 

Email: remerson@garbervillesd.org 

 

mailto:remerson@garbervillesd.org
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ARTICLE 1 – BID RECIPIENT 

1.01 This Bid is submitted to: 

Garberville Sanitary District 

919 Redwood Drive 

Garberville, California 95542  

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement 
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or 
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and 
in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents. 

ARTICLE 2 – BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without 
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to 
acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may 
agree to in writing upon request of Owner. 

ARTICLE 3 – BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS 

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that: 

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Bidding Documents, and hereby acknowledges receipt of 
the following Addenda: 

Addendum No.  Addendum, Date 

   

   

   

   

B. Bidder has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and 
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly 
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related 
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reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of 
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs. 

F. Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding 
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data 
are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid 
and within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of 
the Bidding Documents. 

G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the 
Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents. 

H. Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and confirms that the 
written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder. 

I. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 
terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that 
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without exception the 
Bid and all prices in the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work 
required by the Bidding Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION 

4.01 Bidder certifies that: 

A. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed 
individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or 
rules of any group, association, organization, or corporation; 

B. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false 
or sham Bid; 

C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and 

D. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing 
for the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at 
artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and 
open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the e execution of the Contract. 
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ARTICLE 5 – BASIS OF BID 

5.01 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following 
price(s): 
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NOTE: The bid schedule does not include every item required to construct the project.  The contractor shall include in the bid price 
all labor, materials, engineering, submittal and shop drawings review, coordination and construction of a complete, fully functional 
system under each bid item.  BIDS shall include sales tax, license, patent fees, and all other applicable taxes and fees.  

Item 
No. 

Description Unit 
Estimated 
Quantity 

Bid Unit 
Price 

Bid Price 

1 Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1   

2 Erosion & Sediment Control LS 1   

3 Traffic Control LS 1   

4 Structure Demolition LS 1   

5 Site Clearing LS 1   

6 Rough Grading  LS 1   

7 Aggregate Base TON 80   

8 Unsuitable Material  CY 25   

9 Rock Slope Protection TON 14   

10 Replacement Tree Planting EA 36   

11 Bollards EA 9   

12 6-Foot Security Fence & Gate LF 320   

13 
200,000 Gallon Welded Steel 

Tank and Concrete Ring 
Foundation 

LS 1   

14 8-Inch Pipe and Fittings LF 120   

15 
Seismic Connections and 

Fittings 
EA 2   

16 8-Inch Swing Check Valve EA 1   

17 8-inch Gate Valves  EA 4   

18 
8-inch One-Way Altitude 

Control Valve 
EA 1   

19 6-Inch Gate Valve EA 3   

20 6-Inch Pipe & Fittings LF 25   

21 6-Inch Storm Drain Pipe  LF 25   

22 
Temporary Tank Connection, 

Plumbing & District 
Coordination 

LS 1   

Total of All Unit Price Bid Items $ 

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be 
adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2) 
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids, 
and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, determined as 
provided in the Contract Documents.   
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Total of Lump Sum and Unit Price Bids = Total Bid Price $  

 

ARTICLE 6 – TIME OF COMPLETION 

6.01 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for 
final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the 
dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement. 

6.02 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages. 

ARTICLE 7 – ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID 

7.01 The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid: 

A. Required Bid security; 

B. Evidence of authority to do business in the state of the Project; or a written covenant to 
obtain such license within the time for acceptance of Bids; 

C. Contractor’s California Class A License No.: __________ or Evidence of Bidder’s ability to 
obtain a California Contractor’s Class A License and a covenant by Bidder to obtain said 
license within the time for acceptance of Bids; 

ARTICLE 8 – DEFINED TERMS 

8.01 The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions 
to Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions. 

ARTICLE 9 – BID SUBMITTAL 

BIDDER: [Indicate correct name of bidding entity] 

 

By: 
[Signature]  

[Printed name]  

(If Bidder is a corporation, a limited liability company, a partnership, or a joint venture, attach 
evidence of authority to sign.) 

Attest: 
[Signature]  

[Printed name]  

Title:  

Submittal Date:  
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Address for giving notices: 

 

 

 

Telephone Number:  

Fax Number:  

Contact Name and e-mail address:  

  

Bidder’s License No.:  

 
(where applicable) 

NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other jurisdictions where applicable or required. 
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Caltrans Standard Plans A85 & A85A 
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REVISED STANDARD PLAN RSP A85

GATE POST

Max

Max

OVER 6’-0"

THRU 12’-0"

UP THRU 6’-0"

OVER 12’-0"

THRU 18’-0"

OVER 18’-0"

TO 24’-0"

UP THRU 6’-0"

OVER 6’-0"

THRU 12’-0"

OVER 12’-0"

THRU 18’-0"

OVER 18’-0"

TO 24’-0"

Above post dimensions and weights are minimums.

Larger sizes may be used upon approval.

TO 8’-0" Max

OVER 6’-0"

HEIGHT

FENCE

10.80

14.63

18.99

7.58

14.63

18.99

28.58

2.875"

4.500"

5.563"

6.625"

3.500"

5.563"

6.625"

8.625"

(SEE NOTE 5)

DETAIL PLANS

OR SHOWN ON

6" OR AS SPECIFIED

(SEE NOTE 5)

DETAIL PLANS

SHOWN ON

SPECIFIED OR

6" OR AS

WIDTHS

GATE

OD PIPE
ROUND

(lb/ft)

WEIGHT

5.80

LESS

6’-0" AND

Larger or heavier post and brace sizes may be used upon approval.
The table below shows minimum sized posts and braces complying with the specifications. 

DATED MAY 20, 2011 - PAGE 112 OF THE STANDARD PLANS BOOK DATED 2010.

RSP A85 DATED JULY 18, 2014 SUPERSEDES STANDARD PLAN A85

July 18, 2014
Glenn DeCou

C34547

9-30-15

7-1-14

5.80



BARBED WIRE POST TOP

GUSSET DETAIL
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PLUNGER CUP DETAIL
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.
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.

. . ... ..
METHOD OF ERECTING FENCE FOR FILL SLOPE

METHOD OF TYING FENCE TO HEADWALL

4
"

�"

4"

12"

3
"

3
’
-
0

"

GATE

LATCH

TRUSS

ROD

TRUSS

ROD

1.

2.

3.

8"

2
"

2
"

4"

2"

1
’
-
4

"

�" STEEL 

PLATES

5" x 5"

TENSION

WIRE

1
’
-
0

"

1
’
-
0

"

TENSION

WIRES

H

H HH H

T

T TT T

H is 2’-6" for fabric less than 5’-0" high.

H is 3’-0" for fabric 5’-0" and over.

T is not less than 3 times maximum cross

section of post with minimum of 8".

4’-0"

PLUNGER CUP

SEE DETAIL BELOW

GUSSET

SEE DETAIL 

BELOW

WALK GATE

END POST 

3’-6" Min

VARIES

10’-0" Max

10’-0" Max
10’-0" Max

�" x �"

STRETCHER BAR

3
5
^

1
’-

1
0
"

1
’
-
0

"

1
’-
6
"

1’-0"

4
5
^

1
’
-
0

"

LINE POST CORNER POST

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

NO SCALE

A85A

2
0
1
0
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 A

8
5
A

CHAIN LINK FENCE DETAILS

�" PLATE

�" ` HOLE

#5 x 12" REBAR

H
E

I
G

H
T

 O
F

 F
E

N
C

E

GATE POST

SEE NOTE 2

HEADWALL

GATE LATCH

TIE WIRE

LINE POST

LINE POST

SEE NOTE 1

VARIES - 10’-0" Max

LINE POST

FILL SLOPE

LINE POST

SEE NOTE 2

HORIZONTAL BRACE

6
"

T
y
p

CHAIN AND LOCK CUT 

OUT ALTERNATIVE

NOTES:

See Standard Plan A85 for Chain Link 

Fencing dimensions.

See Detail D on Standard Plan A86B 

for connection at headwall.

BRACE

CONCRETE

CONCRETE

CONCRETE CONCRETE

CONCRETE

CONCRETE

CONCRETE

LOCK PIN, Typ

BARBED WIRE, Typ

7
�"

T
yp

R
 =

 2
"
 

�" PLAIN PIN

RIVETED FLUSH, Typ

�" PLAIN PIN

RIVETED FLUSH, Typ

1�" GALVANIZED

PIPE GATE FRAME

PLUNGER ROD

1" Dia

END POST

3’-6" Min

HORIZONTAL 

BRACE

DOUBLE GATE

REMOVABLE CENTER POST

TENSION WIRE

SEE NOTE 4

SEE NOTE 5

See Detail A on Standard Plan A86B 

for connection at headwall.

4.

5.

WITH �" TRUSS RODS

�" TRUSS RODS

�" TRUSS ROD

�" TRUSS ROD

�" TRUSS ROD�" TRUSS ROD

12-15-10

1
1

3

COUNTY ROUTE
POST MILES

TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET TOTAL

SHEETS

PLANS APPROVAL DATE
No.

Exp.

R
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S
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D
 

P
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I

A
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THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ITS OFFICERS

OR AGENTS SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR

COPIES OF THIS PLAN SHEET.

Glenn DeCou

C34547

9-30-11
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